

ORGANIZATION BY-LAWS

Del Val Chargers Junior Lacrosse Program

Revised March 2010

ARTICLE ONE: ORGANIZATION

1. The name of the Organization shall be Del Val Chargers Junior Lacrosse. The Organization is primarily for youth in the sending districts of Delaware Valley Regional High School and secondarily for youth in the broader Delaware Valley Community who are interested in learning about and participating in the sport of Lacrosse.
2. The Organization was founded through the diligent efforts of Brent Kephart who was instrumental in galvanizing community-wide interest and support.
3. The Organization has a logo that resembles a lightning bolt and the Organization colors are NAVY blue and VEGAS gold.
4. The Organization name and logo colors can only be changed with agreement by a 2/3rds vote of the Officers and Organization members present at a meeting. Members shall be notified in advance with an agenda and recommended attendance requirements. Voting by proxy or representative shall not be permitted.

Any equipment, apparel and or merchandise containing the Charger logo or colors for the use by the team, players or coaches, or staff must be approved by a majority of the Officers.

5. No person shall keep, maintain or store any cash, checks, or other funds or proceeds belonging to the Organization. All cash, checks, funds and proceeds belonging to the Organization which are not being used for authorized expenditures as described in these Bylaws shall be given to the Treasurer as soon as practicable. The Treasurer shall properly deposit all such cash, checks, funds and proceeds into the Organization's bank account as soon as practicable thereafter.
6. The Organization gives the President the authority to act on its behalf and with the verbal agreement of at least four other Officers, to take necessary actions to further the purpose of the Organization without altering the intent and purpose of the Organization as detailed in these by-laws. In the event an expenditure of the Organization's funds is required, \$250.00 shall be the authorized maximum amount before a vote by a majority of the Officers or the membership is required. The reason(s) for the expenditure as well as the actual amount of the expenditure,

if any, shall be entered into the minutes of the next meeting of the Organization.

7. The Organization gives the Equipment Manager the authority (up to an amount of \$1,000) to act on its behalf, to commit the Organization in contracts, and to make expenditures in accordance with a budget approved by a majority of the Officers or by the membership. For amounts over \$1,000, specific approval by a majority of the Officers is required. The Equipment Manager shall provide actual receipts for the expenditures and the amount of the expenditures shall be entered into the minutes of the next meeting of the Organization.
8. The Organization gives the Concessions Manager the authority (up to an amount of \$1,000) to act on its behalf, to commit the Organization in contracts, and to make expenditures in accordance with a budget approved by a majority of the Officers or by the membership. For amounts over \$1,000, specific approval by a majority of the Officers is required. The Concessions Manager shall provide actual receipts for the expenditures and the amount of the expenditures shall be entered into the minutes of the next meeting of the Organization.
9. The Organization gives the Merchandise Manager the authority (up to an amount of \$1,000) to act on its behalf, to commit the Organization in contracts, and to make expenditures in accordance with a budget approved by a majority of the Officers or by the membership. For amounts over \$1,000, specific approval by a majority of the Officers is required. The Merchandise Manager shall provide actual receipts for the expenditures and the amount of the expenditures shall be entered into the minutes of the next meeting of the Organization.
10. The Organization gives the Treasurer the authority (up to an amount of \$1,000) to act on its behalf, to commit the Organization in contracts, and to make expenditures in accordance with a budget approved by a majority of the Officers or by the membership. For amounts over \$1,000, specific approval by a majority of the Officers is required. The Treasurer shall provide actual receipts for the expenditures and the amount of the expenditures shall be entered into the minutes of the next meeting of the Organization.
11. The Organization shall indemnify any and all of its Officers, coaches and volunteers from any liability they may incur as a result of their service to or status with the Organization provided such Officers, coaches and volunteers were acting in good faith in their capacities as such or provided they were acting in good faith on behalf of the Organization. Such indemnification shall be provided to the fullest extent permitted by law and insurance policies may be purchased by the Organization to effect such purposes and to protect the Organization against other loss and/or liability it may incur.
12. The Organization intends to continue membership in and participation in the NEW JERSEY JUNIOR GIRLS LACROSSE LEAGUE and NORTH JERSEY JUNIOR LACROSSE LEAGUE. Any proposed change in league membership or

league participation (“league change”) shall require recommendations from the coaches and shall be presented by the Board to the general membership for a majority vote. . Such presentation and recommendations shall be made in writing to the general membership at a meeting scheduled in advance and for which an agenda and attendance requirements have been provided. Voting shall be required for any proposed league change. Voting by proxy or by representative shall not be permitted.

ARTICLE TWO: PURPOSE

1. The purposes of the Organization shall be:
 - A. To foster and advance interest in lacrosse in all phases of the programs associated with the Organization.
 - B. To teach the game of Lacrosse to the youth of our community and to develop in the youth those skills necessary to play the sport of Lacrosse.
 - C. To establish and maintain an Organization which enables its members to enjoy and experience athletic events.
 - D. To enter into, make and perform contracts as necessary and generally to engage in any activity within the purposes for which the Organization was created.
 - E. To enhance the Delaware Valley Regional High School Athletic Programs and those of other high schools and elementary schools to the extent practical.
 - F. To develop in the youth of our community the ideals of good sportsmanship, honesty, loyalty, courage, integrity, and reverence so that they may be finer and happier persons who will grow to be good, clean, healthy men and women.
 - G. To achieve through the medium of supervised competitive athletic games. The coaches shall bear in mind that the attainment of exceptional athletic skill or winning of games is secondary and the development of, well being of, and enjoyment of the game by the youth is of primary importance.

ARTICLE THREE: PHILOSOPHY

1. The philosophy of the Organization is:
 - A. Develop Character – Challenge each other to do the right things. Be great young men and women in our local community by modeling appropriate behaviors for sport and life.
 - B. Develop Teamwork – The importance of the team is greater than the importance of the individual.
 - C. Develop Dedication – Players are expected to show dedication and give their best effort.
 - D. To Have Fun – If the youth are not having fun, they are not learning. If they are not learning, the Organization will not achieve its purposes.

2. Guiding Principles
 - A. Prioritize the needs of the youth, lead by example and exercise patience in teaching the sport.
 - B. Provide the opportunity to participate in the sport at a reasonable cost.
 - C. Build an organization that people will want to join and support.
 - D. Develop all around athletes/good citizens in the community.
 - E. To provide for players' safety at all times. This includes but is not limited to coaching, conditioning, equipment and facilities.

ARTICLE FOUR

CHILD PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY

1. Child participant eligibility is restricted to youth within the age/grade-level guidelines of the Organization on a first come, first served basis at Registration(s). The number of participants at any age/grade level may be limited or restricted by the Board due to budgetary constraints on the Organization as determined by the Board at the beginning of each season or session.

REGISTRATION

1. The following shall be required of each eligible participant at Registration(s):
 - A. Personal Information
 - B. Physical
 - C. Permission Slip & Waiver
 - D. Emergency Medical Form
 - E. Registration Fees
 - F. Work Bond
 - G. Parent Player Contract
 - H. Fundraising Obligations
2. The Bylaws will be posted on the Organization's website.

MEMBERSHIP

1. Membership in the Organization shall be available to all interested individuals without regard to race, color, creed, religion, national origin, citizenship, sex, marital status, age, physical or mental disability or sexual preference or orientation who have paid the registration fee required to participate (except as described in #4 below) or for his/her/their child or children to participate in the Lacrosse program(s) conducted by the Organization each session. Membership shall automatically include all coaches and Officers.
2. An up-to-date Organization Member List, including participants, members, head coaches and Officers shall be established each session. The responsibility for maintaining the list shall be that of the Secretary. This list shall include names, addresses and phone numbers and no persons are permitted to use the list for any purposes other than those directly necessary to facilitate participation in the activities of the Organization.
3. No person shall participate in any activities of the Organization until the registration requirements have been satisfied.

4. Families requiring special consideration for payment of membership registration fees shall contact an Officer of the Organization to discuss their needs. Each request will be handled on an individual basis, discussed and voted on by a majority of the Officers. This discussion shall be kept in the strictest confidence between the relevant families and the Officers.
5. As of the registration date for each new season, all memberships for prior seasons shall be considered terminated.
6. Refund policy: All registration dues are non-refundable. Work bonds are non-refundable after the first game. Fundraising Waivers are non-refundable after the first game.

ARTICLE FIVE: MEETINGS

1. Meetings shall be scheduled for the general membership and specific other purposes by the Organization President.
2. Scheduled monthly meetings shall be attended by at least five officers. The inability to obtain this quorum shall terminate that meeting.
3. During the lacrosse season, meetings shall be scheduled at least once a month at the Officers discretion with sufficient advance notice to all members.
4. Any action taken on behalf of the Organization by the Officers shall be documented in the meeting's minutes and presented at the following meeting.
5. Notice of the meetings shall be posted on the website when feasible at least one week prior to the monthly meeting.
6. Elections and/or installment of Officers shall be held at the Awards Banquet.
7. The presence in person of a majority of the voting officers shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and annual elections.
8. Special meetings may be held as deemed necessary by the Officers.
9. All Organization business shall be conducted at a regularly scheduled meeting only.
10. If any separate Officers meetings are to be held, all Officers shall be informed in advance of the meeting time, place and agenda.

11. All elected or appointed Officers must be given an opportunity to attend all meetings.
12. If a meeting is held to discuss a member, that member must be given advance notice from two Officers.

ARTICLE SIX: VOTING

1. At all meetings, irrespective of the agenda, each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote per matter that is properly put to a vote.
2. Voting by proxy or representative shall not be permitted.

ARTICLE SEVEN: OFFICERS

1. The organization shall be staffed with officers as follows:
 - *President
 - *Vice President
 - *Treasurer
 - *Secretary
 - *Fundraising Manager
 - *Concessions Manager
 - *Administrative Head Coach (Boys)
 - *Administrative Head Coach (Girls)
 - *Equipment Manager
 - *Fields Manager
2. In order to hold an Officer position, interested persons shall be required to pass the background check required by the Organization. The CURRENT BOARD WILL DETERMINE THE PROCESS FOR CONDUCTING BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR NEXT SEASON'S BOARD AND COACHES.
3. In board meetings, each Officer position is entitled to one (1) vote per matter that is properly put to a vote.

3(a): In the event of a tie vote on any matter voted on by the Board, the President's vote shall act as the tie breaking vote.

4. Anyone interested in an Officer position shall notify the Organization President in writing.
5. The Officers shall make every effort to attend the scheduled meetings. If they miss either 3 consecutive or 5 overall meetings, they shall forfeit their position as an officer. All Officers are expected to make a good faith effort to attend all games and events.
6. Each Officer position is described generally below:

President

The President shall preside at meetings of the Organization and shall be responsible for and perform the duties normally appointed to the role of President including but not limited to:

- A. Presenting the status of the Organization to the members and keeping all the Officers informed of issues related to the club
- B. Coordinating the appointment and activity of committees
- C. Responsibility for signing checks along with the Treasurer
- D. The President is required to be covered by bonding insurance. This insurance will be paid fully by the Organization.
- E. He/she will also be a member of the Grievance Committee

Vice President

The Vice President shall be responsible for and perform the duties normally appointed to the office of the Vice President including but not limited to:

- A. The duties of the President in his/her absence or incapacity
- B. Assisting in the function of any or all of the Officers to the extent necessary and practical
- C. He or she will be responsible for all registration duties of the club
- D. The Vice President will be a member of the grievance committee

- E. The Vice President shall assist all Officers with duty scheduling for members of the Organization

Treasurer

The Treasurer shall be responsible for performing the duties of the office, including but not limited to:

- A. Opening and operating bank accounts in the name of the organization.
- B. Collecting all dues, fees and other funds.
- C. Controlling and depositing monies and issuing disbursements in a timely manner and collecting and arranging for the recording of all receipts corresponding of such disbursements.
- D. Develop in writing and provide monthly financial reports to be presented at monthly meetings. Copies of the financial report shall be made available to any organization member(s) upon request. A copy of the monthly financial report will also be kept on file with the secretary.
- E. Arranging for an audit of all financial records by at least one officer other than the Treasurer and at least one other member of the organization at the end of the season or session.
- F. Treasurer also has the responsibility to sign checks along with the President.
- G. The Treasurer is required to be covered by bonding insurance. This insurance will be paid fully by the Organization.

Secretary

The Secretary shall be responsible for and perform the duties of the office including but not limited to:

- A. Acting as custodian for all the official documents of the Organization.
- B. Recording and maintaining a record of minutes for monthly and/or special meetings.
- C. Creating and maintaining an up-to-date Organizational Member List.
- D. Receiving and replying to various correspondence for the Organization.

- E. Compiling, maintaining and distributing all notices and other pertinent information to the members.
- H. Keeping Officers, the general membership and the community informed about Organization activities via local publications and various Grade School publications in the Delaware Valley Regional High School area.
- G. The Secretary shall be responsible for selecting a Communications Committee. The Communications Committee shall be responsible for performing the following duties including but not limited to:
 - 1. Maintaining the Del Val Chargers Junior Lacrosse web site.

Fundraising Manager

The Fundraising Manager shall be responsible for and perform the duties of raising money for the operation of the Organization, including but not limited to:

- A. Organization of all fund raising activities.
- B. Scheduling and distributing team photos.

Concessions Manager

The Concessions Manager shall be responsible for and perform the duties required to operate a concessions stand for all home games including Friday night games held at Riegel Ridge, home tournaments and Community Day events. Such duties shall included but not be limited to:

- A. Menu planning, shopping for food and supplies and storing or arranging for the storage of perishable and non-perishable goods, organizing the barn storage area and the concessions stand in an orderly fashion, supplying propane, securing a generator as needed and renting equipment as needed;
- B. Scheduling CLUB WORK related to the concessions stand fairly among member families (except coaches and Officers); and
- C. Obtaining all necessary Township and Health Department permits to operate concessions stand including those necessary for Community Day events.

Administrative Head Coach (Boys Program / Girls Program)

The Administrative Head Coach shall be responsible for being the liaison between Coaches, Officers, Organization members and the league. His/her duties shall also include but not be limited to:

- A. Attending all league meetings or arranging for a replacement if unable to attend; and reporting back all pertinent information from the league meeting to the Officers, Coaches and Organization's members.
- B. Scheduling any and all scrimmages
- C. Serving as a member of the Grievance Committee
- D. Insuring that all head coaches and their assistants keep their certification requirements up to date.
- E. Holding a pre-season coaches meeting.
- F. If necessary, acting as an intermediary between a member and a coach.

Equipment Manager

The Equipment Manager shall be responsible to perform the duties of the role appointed including but not limited to:

- A. Inventory, inspection, maintenance, distribution, collection and purchase of all uniforms and equipment
- B. Submitting an annual budget for all the teams in writing by the January meeting

Fields Manager

The Fields Manager shall be responsible for performing the following duties including but not limited to:

- A. Organizing all field preparation and maintenance
- B. Scheduling club work duties for members of the organization related to field maintenance and preparation.

SCHOLARSHIPS / SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE

The Organization shall offer a HS Scholarship for two graduating seniors from Del Val High School (one boy and one girl.) The organization shall abide by the criteria outlined by Del Val High School for all scholarships, with the following two additional criteria. First, qualifying candidates must have played at least one full year in the Del Val Chargers Junior Lacrosse Program. Second, they must write an essay describing how they have “honored the game” during their Del Val High School experience.)

The HS Scholarship committee shall be made up of 3 officers (President, Boys Admin. Head Coach, Girls Admin. Head Coach,) 1 boys coach and 1 girls coach. The purpose of this committee shall be to review HS Scholarship applications and vote on 1 boy and 1 girl to receive a \$500 scholarship.

GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The grievance committee shall be made up of three (3) Officers, the President, the Vice-President and the relevant Administrative Head Coach (Boys or Girls or both depending on the specific circumstances involved).

The purpose of this committee shall be to mediate and resolve grievances between club members and coaches. The procedure for handling grievances will be as follows:

- A. The club member should contact and/or meet with at least two (2) members of the grievance committee.
- B. If complaint remains unresolved, the Committee will then set up a meeting between complainant, respective coach(s) and the grievance committee. The child shall also attend if necessary.
- C. If complaint still unresolved, a meeting will be held with complainant, a majority of the Officers including the grievance committee and coach(s). The results of this meeting shall be documented and records of the meeting shall be kept by the Secretary.

ARTICLE EIGHT: ELECTION OF OFFICERS

1. The election of Organization Officers shall take place at the end of season banquet.
2. The term of the Organization Officers shall be one (1) year starting July 1 through June 30.
3. No Organization Officer shall hold more than one (1) elected office within the Charger Organization at a time.
4. A mid-term vacant Organization Officer position shall be appointed by a majority of the Officers.
5. The elected Organization Officers shall consist of a President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, Fundraising Manager, Concessions Manager, Administrative Head Coach – Boys Program, Administrative Head Coach – Girls Program and Equipment Manager.
6. The Organization Officers shall act for the Organization between its meetings but shall not have the authority to reconsider or reverse any action or policy of the Organization.

ARTICLE NINE: COACHES

1. All coaches must be certified by U.S. Lacrosse and must attend additional annual certification courses as required. All fees for said certification are to be paid by the Organization.
2. All coaches must also pass the background check required by the Organization. The Officers shall decide upon, and communicate the instructions of, the company performing the background check.
3. Anyone interested in a coaching position shall notify the admin. head coach prior to registration. Applicants may also be asked to interview if necessary. All coaching positions will be based upon a recommendation of the relevant Administrative Head Coach.
4. All coaches shall make all reasonable efforts to be committed to the Organization and be responsible for providing a pleasant atmosphere conducive for children to experience fun and enjoyment while learning specific athletic skills.
5. Reasonable efforts shall be made to have a minimum of two (2) assistant coaches for each team level.
6. It shall be the responsibility of the coaching staff to play each player each game if such player practiced during the week prior to the game.
7. All coaches must wear Chargers apparel to all games when provided by the club.
8. All coaching positions can be modified as deemed necessary by a majority of the full board of officers.
9. Each of the Coaches shall adhere to the Organization's Philosophy and the following general and specific code of ethics:
 - A. The use of drugs, alcohol and tobacco products will be forbidden during practices, games and fundraising events.
 - B. All coaches shall treat each child as they would expect another coach to treat their own child.
 - C. All coaches shall treat each child as a unique individual.
 - D. All coaches shall assume a child knows nothing about the sport and work from this understanding.
 - E. All coaches, if necessary, shall reprimand a child privately, so as not to cause the child undue embarrassment.

- F. All coaches shall positively praise the children publicly in plain sight.
 - G. All coaches shall not swear while representing the Organization.
 - H. The success of this program is not measured by the number of wins or losses in a given season, rather by what happens to a child in the program.
10. All children assigned to this league shall be expected to participate in practices for each game in this league. If a child regularly misses practice or is a disruption to his/her team, the coaches of his/her team shall have the right to withhold playing time and/or exclude that child from participating in games. Any coach who is going to exclude a child from participating in a game must notify the relevant Administrative Head Coach and receive confirmation from that head coach that the action taken is approved.
 11. The coaches reserve the right and authority to report to the Grievance Committee a recommendation to remove a child who exhibits a chronic behavior affecting the safety and continuity of the Organization. A special conference between the Officers, coaches and parent/guardian of the child affected shall be held to resolve the problem. If it cannot be resolved during the conference, the parent/guardian shall be asked to remove the child from the program.
 12. No coach shall pay for registration fees, work bond or fundraising obligations for any participant.
 13. Any coach intending to leave the program shall inform the organization president as soon as possible in writing.
 14. No coach shall be or cause himself/herself to be alone with one (1) child (other than his/her own child) for any reason without the company at least one other person at all times.

ARTICLE TEN: CLUB WORK

1. CLUB WORK is defined as any duties not performed by an officer or coach in order to conduct the business of and purposes of the Organization in a safe and efficient manner. CLUB WORK shall be performed by members of the Organization's Member List (Del Val Chargers Junior Lacrosse) at all scheduled Home Games and other Club Activities such as Community Day and other various fundraisers, etc. Each member shall be responsible to perform CLUB WORK when scheduled or assigned or as deemed necessary by the Organization's Field Management Committee.
2. IMPORTANT: In the event a Member is unable to perform CLUB WORK, the Member is required to obtain a replacement from the Organization Member List and provide the replacement's name to the Vice President or Field Management Committee as soon as possible. If a Member does not appear for their assigned CLUB WORK and does not provide a replacement for their assigned CLUB WORK or if the replacement member fails to fulfill the assigned CLUB WORK, the work bond will not be returned to the member to whom the original CLUB WORK was assigned.
3. Members shall make a 100% commitment to their scheduled assigned CLUB WORK.
4. Organization Officers and Coaches are the only members exempt from assigned CLUB WORK.
5. All members with the exception of Officers and Coaches must pay a work bond as deemed necessary by the Organization Officers.
6. Work bonds will be returned to members who have satisfied their assigned CLUB WORK at the completion of the season.

ARTICLE ELEVEN: ORGANIZATION BY-LAW AMENDMENTS

1. Changes to the Organization's By-Laws may be proposed by any member in active standing.
2. The proposed amendments shall be submitted by the active member in writing and be presented to the Officers and Organization members in attendance at a regularly scheduled monthly meeting.
3. No vote shall be held on proposed amendments unless Officers and all members of the Organization have been provided adequate notice.
4. At the meeting when the proposed amendments are presented, a By-Laws Committee consisting of five (5) members shall be appointed by the President, to review the proposed amendments.
5. The By-Laws committee shall report back to the Officers by an agreed date.
6. A change in Organization By-Laws shall only occur with agreement by 2/3rds of the Officers and Organization members present at the meeting.
7. Voting by proxy or representative shall not be permitted.

ARTICLE TWELVE: AWARDS

1. The organization offers the “E” camp scholarship to an 8th grade boy and an 8th grade girl in the organization. Background- Ian Wheeler was a child that played for the Chargers with a significant handicap (his leg was fused together with no knee joint, and reduced hip flexion among other issues.) Ian always pulled his weight, if the team was told to do 10 laps, Ian did 10 laps, even though his team mates might lap him several times. Not only did he always pull his weight, he did so in the true spirit of the game- with a big grin, truly enjoying the opportunity to be playing this great sport. Not only did Ian contribute to the team, but his hard work paid off, and he even scored a goal! As a result of his determination, attitude, and effort the club has created the “E” camp scholarship to be awarded every year to a deserving 8th grader. Criteria for this award are: the spirit that Ian showed- a can do attitude. Effort/hard work both in games and practice, a child that consistently does his best. A true “team mate” that carries their own weight and serves as an example to those around them of giving 100% all the time. A vote by a majority of the Officers shall determine the recipients of this award.
2. The Bob Weaver “Whatever it Takes Award” (2 awards) This is awarded at both the club’s annual ICE BOWL tournament to a coach or “helper” from another club, as well as to a parent, officer, or coach from the organization at the year end picnic. Background: Bob Weaver was one of the founding members of the Chargers organization who was instrumental in getting the program started in 2002. Bob Weaver literally did whatever was necessary to ensure the team had what was needed, most of these items were completely unglamorous, and were the important things, behind the scenes. Examples were: getting the team water, policing the sidelines and cleaning things up, stringing goals, ordering equipment, ensuring all the kids had whatever they needed (extra mouth piece, tightening chin straps,) building a fence at the park so cars would not get hit with balls, etc. basically anything that needed done (Whatever it took,) Bob did. As a result the organization has named its annual ICE BOWL lacrosse tournament after Bob- The Bob Weaver Memorial Ice Bowl. At this tournament, members of Bob’s family and other interested parties walk throughout the tournament and try to find an individual from an opposing team, that exhibits these qualities and award them a plaque entitled, called the “Whatever it Takes” award to thank those individuals behind the scenes, that are always there, instrumental in ensuring the overall team’s success. Characteristics for this award include: in with the team making sure they have everything they need, cleaning up the water bottles left behind, hauling water, fixing chin straps, stringing sticks, cheering loudly, big smile, enjoying the experience, willing to help whoever needs it, humble- will usually tell you “I am just a helper, the coach is over there . . .”
3. The club awards the Bob Weaver Whatever it takes to a deserving parent from the Chargers organization that displays the same characteristics as exhibited above...A vote by a majority of the Officers shall determine the recipient of this

award.

4. The “Honored the Game” award will be given to one team at the girl’s ice bowl tournament. This award will honor one team and coach who show consistent good sportsmanship on and off the field. Good sportsmanship will be displayed by not arguing or ‘trash-talking’ the referees or the other teams they are competing against, positive cheering for their own team, winning and losing in the spirit of the game. The referees of the day as well as the head coaches for each team will choose the winner.
5. Founder’s Award

ARTICLE THIRTEEN: RULES AND AUTHORIZED PLAY

1. The Organization abides by North Jersey Junior Lacrosse League rules for the boys program and by New Jersey Girls Lacrosse League for the girls program where applicable.
2. The Organization is only authorized to play other teams that are members of U.S. Lacrosse. In the event that a non-U.S. Lacrosse member team is scheduled, the attendance must be voted on by the Officers.
3. In the event either the North Jersey Junior Lacrosse League (NJJLL) or the New Jersey Junior Girls Lacrosse League (NJJGLL) establish or formally sanction developmental and/or advanced level Lacrosse teams or programs within their respective leagues THE ORGANIZATION MAY CHOOSE TO PARTICIPATE IN THEM SUBJECT TO AN ANNUAL BOARD REVIEW. ANY TEAM CHARTERED UNDER THIS ARTICLE WILL BE APPROVED WITH A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD. Such participation would be in accordance with these By-Laws and the guidelines set forth by such League, and player participation would be on a volunteer basis only.

ARTICLE FOURTEEN

1. All official meetings of the Organization shall follow the guidelines for meeting conduct as determined by Robert's Rules of Order.

DISSOLUTION

In the event dissolution of the Organization is required for any reason, any assets of the Organization including net proceeds from any games of chance will be distributed as follows:

- A. Equipment may be sold for cash to pay any creditors. If there are no unsatisfied creditors, equipment may be donated to any U.S. Lacrosse members or to Delaware Valley Regional High School,
- B. Other assets will be sold for cash to be used to pay any creditors. If there are no unsatisfied creditors, other assets may be donated to any U.S. Lacrosse members or to Delaware Valley Regional High School, and
- C. Any other remaining money will be applied to the Scholarships as described in Article Seven (delete to a special award described in Article Twelve) of the Organization By-Laws (revised 2-2007)